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Welcome to St Saviourõs 

We are a welcoming and inclusive Christian community 

built on the understanding that God accepts us equally, 

irrespective of gender, sexuality, race, social standing or 

belief - and believing that God calls us equally to share that 

unconditional love with all people, without exception. 

 

We are the parish church for the Bernards Heath area of 

St Albans, and pastorally serve the Marshalswick South 

Ward.  

 

Established originally as a daughter church of St Leonardõs 

in Sandridge during the cityõs expansion in the Victorian 

era, St Saviourõs has always been in the Anglo-Catholic 

tradition of Anglican spirituality and worship. This means 
we use ritual and ceremonial to express those things which 

go beyond words; and try to provide a space in which each 

of us can encounter Jesus, especially in the words of 

Scripture and the bread and wine of Communion at the 

Sunday Mass. 

 

If you live within the parish then you automatically have the 

right to use the church for baptisms, weddings, blessings 

and funerals. 
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The Bernards Heath area of the city of St Albans was 

originally in the Parish of Sandridge, which had been 

given to the Abbey of St Albans by King Offa in the 8th 

century.  

 

In the late 1870s small dwellings sprang up on Sandridge 

Road, overlooking the Heath, near the brickyards. 

Known as 'Snobõs Island', the Heath was cut off from the 

rest of the city by mud wastes.  

 

In 1882 the Vicar of Sandridge acquired a plot of land in 

Culver Road, and at the cost of £250 erected a small 

iron building to serve as a school-church for the area.  

 

In 1888 a permanent school building was opened and the 

ôlittle tin trunkõ, as it became known, was improved and 

continued to serve the area as a Mission Church.  

 

In 1895 the Diocesan Mission Society assumed 

responsibility for the area, and plans were made to erect 

a permanent Mission Church on land gifted by the Earl 

Spencer on Sandpit Lane.  

 

The foundation stone was laid in July 1896 and work 

began building the chancel. Notably most of the bricks 

used in the building of the church were from the local 

brickyard. 

 

Work began building the nave in 1901, and the 

completed church was dedicated by the Bishop of 

Colchester on All Saintsõ Day, 1st November 1902.  
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1 

The Stations of the Cross were 

presented in March 1960 by Mrs 

Winifred Lawson and her son John in 

memory of Mr William Lawson, their 

husband and father, who made the 

statue of the Madonna in this church. 

They were designed by John 

Hayward, executed by Faith Craft 

Ltd, and painted by John Lawson. 

The stations, which can be found 

around the walls of the church, 

depict the events on what is called 

the Via Dolorosa, or the Way of the 

Cross. They are used for devotions 
during Lent and Holy Week. 

The 14 events depicted are: 
 

1. Pilate condemns Jesus to die 

2. Jesus accepts his cross 

3. Jesus falls for the first time 

4. Jesus meets his mother, Mary 

5. Simon of Cyrene helps carry the 

cross 

6. A woman wipes the face of Jesus 

7. Jesus falls for the second time 

8. Jesus meets the women of 

Jerusalem 

9. Jesus falls for the third time 

10. Jesus is stripped of his clothes 

11. Jesus is nailed to the cross 

12. Jesus dies on the cross 

13. Jesus is taken down from the 

cross 

14. Jesus is placed in the tomb 

 



ST SAVIOURõS VISITOR GUIDE 

PAGE 6 

2 

The Pulpit was installed in 1902 and 

contains a portion of an old pulpit 

taken from the Church of the Cowley 

Fathers. 

 

3 

The Organ by the pulpit is a replica 

of an 18th century Silbermann organ 

as played by Bach and is the property 

of the International Organ Festival 

Society.  

4 

The Crucifix over the St Leonardõs 

Altar was designed and made by 

Antigone Harding in 2011. (Adjacent to 

the Choir Vestry door.)  
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The Rood Screen has a Pelican 

carved on each side of the entry to 

the Chancel. A pelican is reputed to 

pluck its breast to feed its young on 

its blood. It is an allegory of Jesusõ 

sacrifice.  

 

5 

The Great Rood and Rood Screen were installed in 

1908 and cost £350. John Lawson altered the proportions 

and design of the Great Rood and decorated it together with 

the Rood Screen in 1963.  

 


